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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Trade and Commerce Building is a five story rusticated Richardsonian
Romanesque structure built of native sandstone. Situated in downtown
Superior, the structure occupies the northeast corner of Broadway

and Hammond Avenue. It is a simple, rectangular block, six bays long
and three bays wide, gently rounded at the southwest and southeast
corners of the facade. A round arch on the south facade frames the
main entrance and a large fanlight. Fenestration is varied, with
straight-topped windows at the first, third, and fourth floors, and
round-arched windows at the second and fifth stories. Third and fourth
story windows are paired over a single, plain sill. Stringcourses .
at the second and fifth story round arched windows provide a continuous
sill. The less prominent sill course at the second story is repeated:
below the cornice. The original projecting cornice was embellished with
closely spaced brackets and followed the curve of the structure at.the
facade corners. A wide staircase with ornate metal railing is the
outstanding interior feature. - ’ ’

Construction followed the contemporary practice of combining a heavy
metal frame with thick, stone bearing walls to produce a stable, almost
fireproof structure. These walls are three feet thick at the base.
Floor slabs are concrete and interior partitions are plaster on gypsum
block. There is a full basement. The structure shows no evidence

of settling, cracking, or other structural defects.

According to the cornerstone the structure was built in 1890. Since

its construction it has changed little, although in the 1950s the cornice
was replaced with a corrugated metal fascia. The building was designed

and situated so that a large wing could be added to the north side. A
two-story wing with Georgian Revival elements was added in the mid 1930s.
This wing, recently restored as offices, housed police headquarters and

the city jail. It is included in the nomination only because it is connected
to the Trade and Commerce Building.

Since the structure was abandoned as the city hall, the interior has
suffered some regrettable modifications. Some marble has been removed
from the front entry and some woodwork has been removed from doorways.
Most of the damage has occurred on the first floor.

The present owner intends to renovate the structure as an office or
apartment complex. He feels that it is important to retain historical
features and replace those that are missing. His restoration goals
include replacement of the cornice and the missing marble panels on
the interior. - Extensive renovation of the electrical and plumbing
systems is also necessary.

The structure is threatened by demolition if renovation iédnot>bégﬁﬁ by-
August 1979. Terms under which the owner purchased the structure stipulated
that he would have to remove it if renovation is not well urder way by that

time. For this reason, the owner's plans for renovation are imminent.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Trade and Commerce Building is significant for both architectural
and historical .associations. It represents the work of an important
regional architect and is a fine local example of the Richardsonian
Romamesque style of architecture. The structure is associated with a
locally prominent entrepreneur "and reflects the h1stor1cal settlement
and- development of Superlor. - : - :

Architecture Clarence H. Johnston, Sr. designed ‘tlie Trade:and Commerce:
Building for Henry D. Minot in 1890. Johnston, who received his education
at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology from 1877 to 1881, was

a prominent St. Paul architect. He was responsible for several designs

in the St. Paul area, including the State Historical Society Building
(1915-1917) and the State Office Building (1932). From 1911 until 1924

he served as Minnesota's state architect, designing many public buildings
in this capacity. Johnston also designed numerous churches and residences.

The Trade and Commerce Building is a-‘clear-expression of Richardsonian -
Romanesque influences and demonstrates the impact of Johnston's Boston
experience on his design. Henry Hobson Richardson was busily‘designing -
the structures that became his trademark and the prototype of a "'style"
while Johnston was'a M.I.T. This structure reflects the distinctive -
adaptation of Romanesque features to American architecture as popularized
by Richardson:i-

History The Trade and Commerce Building figures prominently in Superior's
development and reflects the early commercial activity of that city.

Henry D. Minot had great faith in the future of Superior. He was instrumental
in getting rail service to the c1ty and promoted Superior s commercial
potential. i v SR C o

Minot was president of: the Eastern Railway Co. of Minnesota when he
commissioned Johnston for a design for his Trade and Commerce Building.
Eastern Railway was an affiliate of the Great Northern Railway:Line .and
had® about 180 miles of track stretching from St. Paul to Superior. The
tracks had reached Superior in 1883 and began bringing new residents to -
the town in such numbers that by 1900 Superior was the second largest
city in the state. The 1900 population of 31,091 reflects an increase
of 19,108 from the 1890 census.

. cornerstone
2. Superior City files of'building plans:’
continued
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8. SIGNIFICANCE CONTINUED

Minot built the Trade and Commerce Building to house offices for the
burgeoning grain industry. Apparently, Minot envisioned Superior as
becoming a major grain center and was willing tY invest $115,000 into
"one of the finest buildings in the Northwest." His vision was never
realized. Shortly after the building's completion Minot was killed in
a train accident and the grain exchange came to naught. An 1891 pub-
lication about Superior stated that Minot 'did much for the advancement
of Superior's interests"_and that his death '"delayed the establishing
of a grain market here."“ Thus, for the next few years the Trade and
Commerce Building housed various offices, the court, and the public
library, never being fully occupied.

In 1904 the structure was bought by the city of Superior for use as its
city hall. The city paid only about half of the construction cost of

the Trade and Commerce Building, and occupied it until 1970 when a new
County-City building was completed. During the years it served as city
hall, the Trade and Commerce Building was the center of much of Superior's
community activity.

The old City Hall is one of the very few nineteenth century commercial
structures remaining in Superior. Because of its-location and height,
the structure is a prominent city landmark. Local sentiment for the
structure's preservation is strong, in part demonstrated by a petition
from the City Council in support of the owner's attempts to place the
building in the National Register.

1. Superior Evening Telegraph, A Souvenir of Superior, 1891, p. 120.
2, TIbid., p. 120.




